Thermal towns of the Puy de Dome
La Bourboule
This is very much a Bell Epoque town as is evident from its architecture which can be seen in the facade of the Rozier bakery, the caryatids of the city hall, the neo-Byzantine style of the Great Baths and the many old palaces.

Although its historical roots are in the Gallo-Roman period. it was around 1450 that the first House of Baths with its rustic wooden tubs was installed at the foot of the granite hill of the "Roche des Fees".  However it was only from 1814 with the construction of the first spa that its reputation as a resort began to grow and then in 1854, thanks to the discovery of the thermal properties of the water, that there was a rush to own and commercialise the sources. Finally it was in 1877 that "Les Grands Thermes" was inaugurated but it was not until the early 1900s and the the advent of the fashion initiated by the Empress Eugenie, of visiting thermal towns and taking the waters, that according to legend, with a stroke of "magic wand", the modest hamlet of the Rock of the Fairies metamorphosed, to La Bourboule a "queen of water cities", internationally renowned in the treatment of respiratory and skin diseases.  It has since welcomed royalty and well known guests who have regularly taken their cures at the station, including the Queen of Romania, King Farouk ,Buster Keaton and Sacha Guitry. 

The festive heart of the town has always been Georges Clémenceau Boulevard with its wide esplanades, terraces and its art deco, neo-classical, even baroque facades - the eclectic style typical of spa towns, which have copied every era's architectural style. 

The Fenestre Park is 12 HA of botanical park and gardens  next to the Dordogne which was created in the English style. It is one of the oldest botanical parks in France and contains more than 200 species and varieties of trees and shrubs of which there are many of particular interest such as the  "sequoiadendron giganteum" which is more than 40 m high and has a circumference of 10 m and the250 perennials grouped in a collection garden quite unusal at 850m altitude.  As La Bourboule is the first European spa for children, the park has been especially developed for their entertainment and enjoyment with special play areas, a small train, a mini-golf, picnic area, bumper cars, toboggan with 3 tracks, legendary swings, the Tyrolean, galloping ride, adventure trail, and not forgetting the neccessary refreshments.
Châteauneuf-les-Bains
Built on the shores of the Sioule river, the village was initially developed around an ancient parish called “Saint-Cirgues sous Châteauneuf” which it was named after. It then became known as “Saint-Valentin sous Châteauneuf” before finally becoming Châteauneuf-les-Bains. The town owes its fame to its mineral waters which gush from 25 springs located over a 3km area - only some of which are exploited. The Gallo-Romans were first to discover the benefits of these waters but the spa activity really took off in the 19th century. Explorer Jean-Pierre Alibert used to regularly visit Châteauneuf-les-Bains to cure his rheumatism. He fell in love with the town and built “Notre-Dame de l’Espérance” in 1862. 

The Thermal Park was created in 1882 by Jean-Baptiste Bargoin a pharmacist from Clermont Ferrand and is typically english in style from the era of Napoleon III and is charecterised by a the exotic essences one detects when strolling through. In 1994, the park was classed as an arboretum and today around 30 types of conifers and feuillus are to be found here.
Tranquility and serenity is the hall mark if this thermal station, which is located on the banks of the Sioule River. The building was entriely renovated during 2015 and all medical and spa treatments take place under the same roof. Besides the normal cures, visitors can choose from custom treatments of one to six-day packages.

Châtel-Guyon  is a Belle-Époque spa town at the gateway to the Volcanoes of Auvergne. 
Around 1185, Guy II Count of Auvergne, in conflict at the time with his brother Robert, Bishop of Clermont, had a castle built at the top of a hill with a calvary towering above the Limagne, called Castrum Guidonis, which later became Châtel-Guyon. In order to settle the dispute, King Philippe-Auguste sent troups in 1213 to take that fortress by assault.
After the plague of 1634, the inhabitants of the hamlet of Saint-Coust took refuge round the old dilapidated castle, using the stones to build their houses. The village of Châtel-Guyon was born. The story goes that this was where Guy de Maupassant penned his novel Mont-Oriol, which is around the creation of a thermal spa. Today it boasts all the emblems of its thermal heritage: thermal baths, parks, casino, grand hotel and a host of villas of varying architectural styles.
The Casino and Theatre were built from 1898 to 1900 after the drawings of the Parisian Architect Albert Le Voisvenel, the Casino and Theatre were extended in 1908-1910 by the Architect Edouard Niermans (designer of the Négresco in Nice). Initially, the Theatre had a sliding roof (which no longer exists). 
The Grand Hotel was built in 1929-1932 by Ernest Pincot in the Art Deco style. Of interest in the hallway, is the Art Deco stained glass window by Marcelle Russias.

In 1671 a chemist, named Duclos, carried out the first analyses of the springs. At the end of the 17th century, the springs spurted already with a particular noise which resulted them in being named the "Gargouilloux" or Gurgling waters.  Although already famous in the 18th century, the Spa of Châtel-Guyon became particularly fashionable in the 19th century. In 1817 the council built the first  and very basic installation. Camille Bosson, whose family had obtained the concession of the waters, built the first installation worthy of the name in 1858. The creation of the railway in Riom in 1855 was a turning point in the development of the spa. In 1878, the Châtel-Guyon Waters Company, bought the Brosson and the Barse installations, and started major urban planning, in particular the realization of the avenue des Bains (today avenue Baraduc) and the construction of the new Great Spa Establisments. 
In 1912, Châtel-Guyon was declared a spa and had its own major railway station built. The thermal station, built from 1882 to 1888 was destroyed in 1982 to be replaced by a comtemporary builiding situated in the thermal park is where the 'curists' have their treatments today. At the beginning of the 20th century 28 spa springs were in use. Some of them, the Deval, Germaine, Louise, Marguerite and Yvonne springs supplied the fountains of the thermal park, others the Great Water-Cure Establishments, the Henry spring supplied the Thermes Henry. 

An entirely new thermal resort, unique in France, is being constructed and will open its doors during 2019.  This will include a thermal establishment, a thermal spa, a 4 star hotel and restaurant and a residence and residence services for independent seniors.

Le Mont-Dore 
Situated at 1.050 m altitude in the valley of the Upper Dordogne at the foot of the Puy de Sancy at the source of the Dordogne River, and in the heart of the natural park of the Auvergne volcanoes, Le Mont-Dore is the highest of thermal towns in the Auvergne.
The Puy de Sancy (1,886m) is the highest point in the Massif Central and is a 
stratovolcano (several volcanoes overlapping each other and erupting at different times) This intensive volcanic activity formed the Massif du Sancy and is the source of a vast wealth of geological phenomena and flora.  You can access the summit by cable car, and then a 20 min climb to a viewing platform providing spectacular views over the valleys in the National Nature Reserves of Chaudefour and Chastreix-Sancy. The waterfall, one of the highest in Auvergne has a drop of 30m under the columnar basalt and is particularly impressive. 

The Mont-Dore itself is a renowned spa town with a warm and lively atmosphere. The architecture is a reflection of a rich past:
- The Capucin funicular: a historic monument, the oldest electric funicular in France (constructed in 1898). It operates from from May to October and takes you up to the Salon du Capucin at an altitude of 1,300m, where there are many hiking paths and adventure trail in the trees. 
- The Thermal baths: behind the austere lava-coloured façade is the hidden flamboyance of a prestigious past. Listed as a historic monument, this is a wonderful example of the Neo-Byzantine style with the framework in Gustave Eiffel's signature style and vast rooms with painted ceilings, columns, domes, rose windows, stained glass, marble statues and mosaics, and even vestiges of the Roman baths, frescos from the XIXth century.

The healing properties of Mont-Dore thermal springs, now numbering twelve, were known since ancient times. Neglected in the Middle Ages, they found new favour and gained popularity in the eighteenth century and especially the nineteenth century. The determination and the work of several men, including Michel Bertrand, Water Inspector in Mont-Dore, contributed to the town becoming an international spa town, hosting politicians, artists, members of royal families alike. The spa became the heart of the future town of Mont-Dore with hotels, luxury hotels, casino, buildings, new villas and public buildings being built.

Today Monte-Dore attracts tourists year round with its wide range of seasonal activities and sports.
Royat
This has been a spa town since roman times and many of their installations can still be seen here. It wasnt until 1822 when the source Caesar was first discovered and then, thanks to the high output of the Great Source discovered in 1844 that a large-scale thermal operation could be considered. In 1845, Buschetti and Lhuer, the first concessionaries of the Royat thermal waters commissioned the then regional architect to develop a thermal station capable of attracting the world's aristocracy and bourgeoisie.  Construction began in 1852 and took four years to complete. In 1862, a visit by Napoleon 111 and Empress Eugenie gave Royat Thermal Staion an official recognition and the Great Source was renamed Eugenie to mark the occasion. Since then, many notable developments, expansions and restructuring have taken place. In 1938 the municipality took over responsibility for the sources and the Thermal Station and despite the vagaries of history, the resort of Royat / Chamalières remains strongly marked by hydrotherapy and continues to evolve.
The Royat Chamalières, a spa and tourist resort was built around the thermal activity. It is well situated being close to the Chaîne des Puys Volcans Regional Natural Park of Auvergne and the capital of the Puy de Dome, Clermont-Ferrand.   

The thermal town of  the Cantal
Chaude-Aigues
Nestled in the valley of Remontalou southeast of the Cantal, the spa town of Chaude-Aigues is the southernmost of the thermal spas of Auvergne and at, 82 ° C, has the the hottest spring in Europe. 

Over the centuries people have enjoyed the benefits of these miraculous waters bubbling up from the depths of the earth. Today more than ever, the spa and fitness centres are the hallmark of this Cantal station. Besides the thermal station, the sources power the seven public fountains throughout the city. These fountains were once used by residents for domestic use (dishes, laundry, cleaning and cooking ...) and even for heating in winter! 

The curative properties of this water mean that Chaudes-Aigues has become a well-known and unique spa town in Cantal. 

Thermal town of the Creuse

Evaux-les-Bains
This thermal town has an interesting history and was also featured by George Sand in her novel, "Joan"

The sources of Evaux-les-Bains were known to the Celtic tribes, which prompted the Roman legions to set up their winter quarters here. They then built and exploited the first spa and called the place “Ivaonum” which lasted 16 years and was visited by the Emperor Augustus in 26 BC. A small Gallo-Roman town grew up during the first century with the building of a temple, forum, amphitheater, aqueduct and a large covered corridor linking the Spa. This period was interrupted by the barbarian invasions and the town's destruction was completed by a fire, and a landslide. The thermal activity stopped for over 1000 years.
In 1443, the royal administration made Évaux the medieval capital of Combraille, and the town enjoyed its medieval heyday with the construction of the abbey Saint Pierre. 
An economic revival was initiated by Louis 15th in 1720, when the Roman baths, abandoned since the fifth century, became popular again.. It was not until the nineteenth century, with the advent of the railroad, that thermal activity in the town really came into its own, gaining popularity and renown far and wide. In 1831 the first spa company, was formed and the construction of the Tardes viaduct by Gustave Eiffel allowed for the arrival of the railroad bringing with it increased numbers of spa guests. A difficult period followed for Evaux les Bains and the thermal station, with the Vichy government requisitioning the Grand Hotel Thermal in order to establish an administrative detention centre where Edouard Herriot, Jouhaux and many others were under house arrest. In 1942, a devastating fire destroyed the monastery and the splendor of the church house was lost. In October 1975, the town bought the entire spa and in 1996, a public-private partnership was formed which ensures the continuation of the thermal station. 

Besides the thermal station, Evaux les Bains offers a variety of activities: fishing, mountain biking, tennis, hiking, horse riding and there is also a casino and there are always numerous events planned during the summer with shows, fetes, markets, vintage car rally’s and lots more.

